
United Nations FIFTH COMMITTEE, 989th 
MEETING GENERAL 

ASSEMBLY 
Official Records • Wednesday, 29 May 1963, 

at 10.50 a.m. 

FOURTH SPECIAL SESSION NEW YORK 

CONTENTS 

Agenda item 7: 
Consideration of the financial situation of the 

Organization in the light of the report of the 
Working Group on the Examination of the 
Administrative and Budgetary Procedures of 

Page 

the United Nations (continued). • • • • • • • • • 29 

Chairman: Mr. Jan Paul BANNIER 
(Nether lands). 

AGENDA ITEM 7 

Consideration of the financial situation of the Organization 
in the light of the report of the Working Group on the 
Examination of the Administrative and Budgetary Proce­
dures of the United Nations (A/5187, A/5274, A/5407 and 
Corr.1, A/5416, A/5421, A!C.5/974, A/C.5/975, A/ 
AC.113/1-27) (continued) 

1. Mr. CSATORDAY (Hungary) expressed his sym­
pathy to the Secretary-General and tothedelegationof 
the United Arab Republic on the death of Mr. Omar 
Loutfi, Under-Secretary for Special Political Affairs. 
He congratulated the Chairman, Vice-Chairman and 
Rapporteur on their re-election and welcomed the 
delegation of Kuwait. 

2. Many representatives had alre!ldy recognized, 
directly or indirectly, that the current debate was of 
a political nature. The Hungarian delegation felt that 
the problem, which threatened the unity and integrity 
of the United Nations itself, should be considered from 
the ·point of view of strengthening to the utmost the 
effectiveness and vitality of the Organization. 

3. The United Nations could fulfil its main task-the 
maintenance of international peace and security-only 
if it strove to reach a solution which respected the 
opinion of all Member States and took into account the 
differences between them. Any attempt to transform the 
United Nations into a club of politically like-minded 
Members was doomed to failure, as had happened in the 
case of Korea, where the United Nations had waged a 
bloody war instead of maintaining peace. Any half 
measures designed to overcome the Organization's 
difficulties temporarily would provide no solution to the 
real problem; if, therefore, a worth-while lesson was 
to be drawn for the future, it was necessary to analyse 
the mistakes which had been committed and to demon­
strate how certain forces had imposed their own inte­
rests on the United Nations, thus fundamentally vitiat­
ing the whole Congo operation. 

4. As the Hungarian delegation had already stated 
many times, it did not accepteitherGeneralAssembly 
resolution 1854 (XVII) or the advisory opinion of the 

29 

International Court of Justice ,!1 which in any event 
had been opposed by five of the judges themselves. It 
based its attitude on the following considerations. 

5. First, Member States were not bound to cover 
either the expenses of ONUC or those of UNEF since, 
as was clear from Articles 11 and 12 of the Charter, 
such an obligation could arise only from a unanimous 
decision uf the Security Council and not from a General 
Assembly resolution. 

6. Secondly, while it was true that the Security Council 
had adopted resolutions authorizing the dispatch of 
armed forces to the Congo, those forces had been em­
ployed in a manner contrary to that intended by the 
Council. It was clear that the provisions of Article 43 
of the Charter had been grossly violated in connexion 
with the Congo operation. The USSR delegation and a 
number of others had already emphasized that the late 
Secretary-General had requested instructions from 
the General Assembly on several matters relating to 
the employment of the Force and to the whole concept 
of the Congo operation, which were within the sole 
jurisdiction of the Security Council. 

7. In reply to those arguments, it was sometimes 
claimed that the Congo operation had been sanctioned 
by several resolutions of the Security Council and that 
the expenses incurred were therefore "expenses of the 
Organization" within the meaning of Article 17, para­
graph 2, of tire Charter. Article 17, however, was con­
cerned only with expenses included in the regular bud­
get of the Organization and it was clear, as the 
representative of Mexico and others had explained in 
1961Y that peace-keepingexpenseswerefundamental­
ly different from expenses included in the regular 
budget and could therefore not be covered by Article 17. 
The Hungarian delegation's position was also con­
firmed by Articles 43, 48 and 49 of the Charter. 

8. Thus peace-keeping expenses could not be con­
sidered expenses of the Organization within the mean­
ing of Article 17 without contradicting the Charter and 
the authority of the Security Council. The point at issue 
was not a question of detail, but a matter which affected 
the very basis of the United Nations. Only the principle 
of unanimity among the great Powers could provide a 
solution to the problems of maintaining peace and 
security. Any decision which ignored that principle 
could be a source of mistakes and crimes, as had 
happened in the case of Korea and the Congo. The 
Security Council was a safety valve which helped to 
maintain international peace and security, taking into 
account the real balance of power in the world; that was 
why the Council was the most important guarantee of 
peaceful coexistence and any attempt to minimize its 

!I Certam expenses of the United Nations (Article 17, paragraph 2, of 
the Charter), Advisory Opinion of 20 july 1962: I.C.j. Reports 1962, 
p. 151, transmitted to theMembersoftheGeneral Assembly by a note of 
the Secretary-General (A/5161 and Corr.l ). 
Y See Official Records of the General Assembly, Fifteenth Session, 

Annexes, agenda items 49f50, docwnent A/C.5f862. 

A/C.5/SR.989 



30 General Assembly - Fourth Special Session - Fifth Committee 

importance was contrary to the Charter and demon­
strated an obvious lack of political realism. 

9. The present financial crisis was simply the result 
of that political situation. It was high time, therefore, 
that the financial affairs of the Organization were 
managed in conformity with the principles of the Char­
ter. The connexion between the violation of the basic 
principles and budgetary rules of the United Nations 
and the emergence of the present financial crisis was 
only too apparent. 

10. The socialist countries had for years been raising 
objections to the inclusion in the regular budget of such 
extraordinary items as the United Nations Memorial 
Cemetery in Korea, the United Nations Truce Super­
vision Organization in Palestine, the United Nations 
Commission for the Unification and Rehabilitation of 
Korea, and the Field Service. Since the Western Powers 
had QOntinued to use the United Nations for their own 
ends and were now trying to make all the Member 
States share the financial and political responsibility 
for the illegal acts they had instigated, the Hungarian 
delegation had no choice but to declare that it would 
in future contribute only to the financing of the legal 
activities of the Organizationcarriedoutinconformity 
with the provisions of the Charter. 

11. He pointed out, in that connexion, that the United 
States representative had tried to discredit the Soviet 
Union by giving the impression that the latter was 
opposed to technical assistance activities. It was 
actually the United States which viewed technical as­
sistance in the light of its own interests, as was 
evidenced by its attitude towards the granting of 
assistance to Cuba. In contrast, the socialist countries 
had always rendered technical assistance to the under­
developed countries and would continue to do so, but 
they refused any longer to contribute in dollars for the 
dispatch to those countries of experts belonging almost 
exclusively to the NATO countries. 

12. By 30 June 1963 the total expenditure on ONUC 
and UNEF would be approximately $425 million, of 
which 88,5 per cent had already been met, mainly by 
the United States and other Western Powers. The 
problem, therefore, could be settled in one way only: 
the Security Council, as the only competent organ, 
should charge the remaining 11.5 per cent to those 
countries whose monopolies were gaining tremendous 
profits from the natural wdalth of the Congo and which­
by no mere coincidence-had also had the closest re­
lations with the secessionist movement in Katanga. The 
Hungarian delegation was glad to see from the records 
of the debates and the report of the Working Group on 
the Examination of the Administrative and Budgetary 
Procedures of the United Nations (A/5407 andCorr.1) 
that its view was shared by a number of African dele­
gations, including that of Nigeria. The identity of the 
aggressors in the Congo and of the beneficiaries of the 
aggression was clear from the statements made by the 
Soviet Union representative and some others. 

13. An article published in The Economist on 10 Feb­
ruary 1962 showed that, up to 1959, the Union Mini~re 
du Haut Katanga paid the Government of the Congo­
then Belgian-some f.21 million in taxes, and that it had 
since been paying a similar amount to the Government 
of Katanga. Those remittances amounted to some 80 
per cent of Mr. Tshomb€l's budget. In its issue of 6-7 
August 1960, La Libre Belgique had stated that the 
United States monopolies were seeking to control the 
Katangese copper and cobalt production. Thus it was 

obvious that -the United Nations had been obliged to 
remain in the Congo because of the conflicts between 
Western economic groupings; the latter should there­
fore assume the expenses which, moreover, would not 
be a heavy burden for them. Any attempt on the part of 
the United States to prolong a cold-war atmosphere 
could only undermine the authority of the United Nations 
and was doomed to failure. 

14. In conclusion, the Hungarian delegation wished to 
state the following: first, for the sake of the United Na­
tions itself, it wasnecessarytoputanend once and for 
all to the abnormalities in its finances. The provisions 
of the Charter must be applied and a definite distinction 
must be made between activities covered by the regular 
budget and others. Secondly, it was impossible to force 
a considerable number of Member States to contribute 
to the financing of expenses which had been incurred in 
violation of the Charter. Any resolution to that effect 
would be an invasion of the sovereignty of Member 
States and should therefore be regarded as invalid. 
Furthermore, the very existence of the United Nations 
would be imperilled by such attempts; in that connexion 
the Hungarian delegation agreed with the representa­
tive of Mexico (985th meeting) who had stated that the 
sanctions prescribed in Article 19 could not be applied 
to peace-keeping operations. Thirdly, the imperialist 
countries, which were responsible for the hindering of 
the implementation of the Security Council's resolu­
tions, for the assassination of Prime Minister 
Lumumba and for the long sufferings of the Congolese 
people, must take complete political and financial re­
sponsibility for the operations. Fourthly, while re­
specting the efforts of those countires which, because 
of their concern for the future of the United Nations, 
were trying to find temporary solutions, the Hungarian 
delegation was convinced that a proper solution could be 
based only on respect for the principles of the Charter 
and the condemnation of the aggressors. To attempt to 
make the United Nations a mere instrument in the hands 
of the United States and its allies would threaten the 
very existence of the Organization, whose role was to 
enable all States to negotiate together in order to find 
unanimous solutions to major world problems. 

15. Mr. BENITES (Ecuador) congratulated the offi­
cers on their re-election and welcomed the delegation 
of Kuwait. His delegation associated itself with the 
condolences extended to the delegation of the United 
Arab Republic upon the death of Mr. Loutfi. 

16. The problem under discussion was not a simple 
question of methods of financing: its political and legal 
aspects concerned the very existence oftheOrganiza­
tion, for the facts were such as to threaten the immedi­
ate future of the United Nations. According to the 
Secretary-General's report (A/C.5/974), the Organ­
ization's budgetary deficithadreached$93.9 million by 
31 March 1963. By 30 June it would reach $101.4 
million and by the end of 1963 $140 million. The 
Organization would then have no more than $10 million 
left, which was not even enough to cover the regular ex­
penses for one month. It was a question of bankruptcy 
pure and simple. 

17. It was surprising to note that the major part of the 
arrears was owed, not by the poor countries, but by the 
great Powers to which the Charter had entrusted, to­
gether with the right of veto, the primary responsibili­
ty for the maintenance of international peace and secu­
rity. Document A/C.5/974 showed that by 31 March 
1963 the fivepermanentmembersoftheSecurityCoun­
cil had owed $129,935,414 of the total arrears 



989th l!leeting - 29 May 1963 31 

($182,958, 796), or about 71 per cent. Moreover, half of 
the arrears had been owed by one permanent member of 
the Council alone. 

18, With regard to the question of which organ was 
competent to authorize the expenditures pertaining to 
peace-keeping operations, he disputed the argument 
that they should be authorized by the Security Council 
as the body primarily responsible for the maintenance 
of peace. Under Article 24, paragraph 1, of the Charter, 
the Members of the Organization conferred on theSe­
curity Council primary-but not exclusive-responsi­
bility for the maintenance of international peace and 
security, in order to ensure prompt and effective 
action; they agreed that in so doing the Security 
Council acted on their behalf. There was thus no ques­
tion but that the Member States, meeting in the Gen­
eral Assembly, had delegated their powers to the 
Security Council in the interests of effectiveness-a 
fact further demonstrated by paragraph 3 of the same 
Article, which provided that the Security Council was to 
report to the General Assembly. Furthermore, Article 
43 provided that armed forces, assistance and facilities 
necessary for the purpose of maintaining peace were to 
be made available to the Security Council, in accord­
ance with a special agreement or agreements; if mili­
tary questions were to be the object of special agree­
ments, it was unthinkable that the Council alone should 
be competent to decide the financial questions. The 
advisory opinion of the International Court of Justice 
confirmed that view. It was thus clear that it was for 
the General Assembly to vote on the expenses and 
apportion them. All Member States must pay their con­
tributions; if they did not, Article 19 of the Charter, 
which dealt with arrears, should be invoked. 

19. The scale of assessments should be made both 
flexible and fair, and to that end the criteria to be 
applied should be those of capacity to pay and the 
degree of responsibility of States. He was sure that, 
thanks to the efforts of the Working Group, it would be 
possible to find a formula which would save the Organi­
zation from bankruptcy and enable the ONUC and 
UNEF expenses to be put in order. 

20. Mr. OKAZAKI (Japan) congratulated the Chair­
man, the Vice-Chairman and the Rapporteur on their 
re-election. 

21. In resolution 1854 (XVII) the General Assembly 
had accepted the advisory opinion of the International 
Court of Justice that the costs of the United Nations 
peace-keeping operations in the Middle East and the 
Congo were "expenses of the Organization" within the 
meaning of Article 17, paragraph 2, of the Charter. It 
had instructed the Working Group to study special 
methods for financing peace-keeping operations ofthe 
United Nations involving heavy expenditures, to study 
the situation arising from the arrears of some Member 
3tates in their payment of contributions for financing 
such operations and to recommend arrangements to 
bring up to date such payments. Although the Working 
Group, of which his delegation had been a member, 
had been unable to formulate unanimous conclusions 
and recommendations, a certain consensus of opinion 
seemed to have emerged with respect to the basic 
principles for the financlJJ.g of future peace-keeping 
operations (see A/5407 andCorr.1,para.10). His dele­
gation supported those principles, wnich appeared to be 
consistent with the letter and spirit oftheCharter and 
to take into account the actual economic situation of 
Member States. 

22. With regard to the initial segmentofthenet costs 
which, in accordance with the fourth of those principles, 
was to be assessed on all Member States on the basis 
of the scale applicable to the regular budget, he re­
called that some del~gations had thought that it should 
not go above $5 million, or 5 per cent of the costs of 
the operations in a given financial year, whereas 1 other 
delegations had thought that it mightreach$10or even 
$20 million per operation per year, or 10 per cent of 
the costs of each operation. His delegation considered 
that purely symbolic contributions were not acceptable 
if the concept of the collective responsibility of Mem­
ber States was to be upheld; it therefore felt that it 
would be reasonable to fix the initial segment to be 
apportioned according to the regular scale at $10 
million. As to the special scale, which, in accordance 
with the fifth principle, was to be established for the 
apportionment of the balance of the costs, it should be 
based even more strictly than the regular scale on the 
capacity to pay of Member States. In the past, an ad hoc 
formula had been adopted which had provided across­
the-board reductions for Members assessed at the 
minimum rate or receiving assistance under the Ex­
panded Programme of Technical Assistance. While 
that formula had the mer:.t of simplicity, it also con­
tained an element of guesswork and he considered that 
a special scale based on strict capacity to pay would 
be far more reasonable and equitable; his delegation 
supported the formula to that effect which the Aus­
tralian representative had proposed at the seventh 
meeting of the Working Group. 

23. In his delegation's view, it was imperative that 
the General Assembly "lhf'uld establish a long-term 
formula for the financing of future peace-keeping 
operations so that the United Nations could act promptly 
and effectively in time of emergency and so that Mem­
ber States might have a fairly precise picture of their 
share of the costs. Nevertheless, inasmuch as one of 
the major contributing States had indicated that it would 
prefer the Committee to concentrate on the immediate 
future at the present session, his delegation was pre­
pared, if necessary, toconsideranadhocarrangement 
for the existing operations. As far as financing of the 
operations in the Congo and the Middle East was con­
cerned, his delegation considered that, whatever kind of 
formula was worked out at the present session, it 
whould not be such as to require a radical change in the 
contributions expected of Member States in comparison 
with what they had hitherto been paying to the ONUC and 
UNEF accounts. The Japanese Government, for its 
part, was prepared to contribute in 1963 an amount 
based on the regular scale of assessments and repre­
senting twice as much as its past contributions, but it 
would find difficulty in going beyond that amount. 

24. As far as the question of arrears was concerned, 
his delegation had supported the proposals formulated 
by six Powers in the Working Group (see A/5407 and 
Corr. 1, para. 26). It was heartening to see from the 
Secretary-General's report (A/C.5/974) that there 
were indications of progressive improvement in the 
collection of arrears in contributions; his delegation 
hoped that that tendency would be strengthened, for the 
sake of the prestige both of the Member States con­
cerned and of the United Nations as a whole. He noted 
that among the thirty-two Member States which had 
brought all their payments up to date, at least to the end 
of the past financial year, seven were countries with 
extremely low incomes; he was tempted to comment 
that the richer countries should be able to follow their 
example. He agreed with the Australian representative 



32 General Assembly - Fourth Special Session - Fifth Committee 

that for the great majority of Member States the issue 
was not economic or financial; it was a question of 
willingness to accept all the obligations of membership 
and to give the financial obligations to the United Na­
tions an appropriate priority in relation to other 
national priorities. 

25. In conclusion, his delegation supported the Secre­
tary-General's recommendation (ibid., para. 20) that 
the subscription period for the purchase of United 
Nations bonds be extended to 31 December 1963. His 
delegation reserved the right to speak again when 
specific proposals had been submitted. 

26, Mr. LECHUGA (Cuba) said that he wished to 
associate himself with the tribute paid to the memory 
of Mr. Loutfi, the late Under-Secretary for Special 
Political Affairs. He would also like to congratulate the 
Chairman and the other officers of the Committee on 
their re-election, 

27. With regard to the question before the Committee, 
his delegation wished to reaffirm its position, which 
was one of complete respect for the provisions of the 
Charter. The Revolutionary Government had always 
discharged its responsibilities as a Member of the 
United Nations. That was, indeed, the only possible 
policy from a legal standpoint and the only one cons is­
tent with Cuba's struggle to preserve its independence. 

28, It was because of its respect for the fundamental 
legal instrument of the United Nations that Cuba re­
fused to assume financial responsibilities which were 
not its own. Its refusal also represented an instinctive 
reaction to the injustices, the attempts at economic ex­
ploitation and the acts of hypocrisy which underlay the 
problem before the Committee. 

29, It was common knowledge, both in the United Na­
tions and elsewhere, that only the Security Council was 
competent to take action in the event of a threat to 
international peace or an act of aggression, particular­
ly if such action entailed the use of armed force. Chap­
ter VII of the Charter was unequivocal in vesting in the 
Security Council the responsibility for setting the 
machinery of the United Nations in motion and then 
supervising its operation, Articles 43 and 48, in par­
ticular, made it quite clear that any Members of the 
United Nations desiring to contribute to the mainten­
ance of international peace and security must proceed 
in accordance with agreements negotiated on the 
initiative of the Security Council and that the Council 
was to determine what action was required. Finally, 
Article 50 declared that any State, whether a Member 
of the United Nations or not, could consult the Security 
Council with regard to a solution of any economic 
problems with which it might be confronted as a re­
sult of preventive or enforcement measures taken by 
the Council against any other State. 

30. Although those provisions could not possibly be 
clearer, the Powers most directly responsible for the 
acts of aggression committed in recent years were 
attempting to deny the facts and, through sophistry and 
hair-splitting, to share their responsibility with all 
other Member States, thus distorting the meaning of the 
Charter and creating unlawful situations which were 
contrary to its provisions. 
31. In the case of UNEF, United Nations troops had 
been sent to the Middle East under a General Assembly 
resolution, not under a decision of the Security Council. 
With regard to the Congo operations, although troops 
had been sent to that country in pursuance of a Security 
Council resolution, certain Powers had succeeded in 

distorting the Council's decisions andpreventingtheir 
implementation, They had thus created the conditions 
which had led to the murder of the lawful head of the 
Congolese Government-the very man who had re­
quested United Nations assistance and, moreover, a 
man supported by the overwhelming majority of his 
people, i.e., the one person to whom the United Nations 
had owed support and protection. 

32. The General Assembly was not empowered to im­
pose obligations on Member States, particularly when 
in so doing it was usurping the authority of the Security 
Council. Under Article 10 of the Charter, the General 
Assembly could only make recommendations, while 
Article llleft no doubt as to theAssembly's subordi­
nate role in relation to the Security Council with regard 
to the maintenance of international peace and security. 
Yet, it was the decisionoftheGeneralAssembly which 
was being invoked in an· effort to make all Member 
States bear the financial consequences of unlawful acts, 
even though the Assembly itself had twice stated that 
the extraordinary expenses for the operations in the 
Congo were essentially different in nature from the 
expenses for the operations in the Congo were essen­
tially different in nature from the expenses of the Or­
ganization. under the regular budget (resolutions 1619 
(XV) and 1732 (XVI)), 

33, Similarly, the advisory opinion of the International 
Court of Justice had no binding effect. The opinion ren­
dered by nine of the Court's judges in an effort to 
ratify a flagrant violation of the Charter was unaccept­
able, particularly since the Court had no authority 
whatever to interpret the Ch&.rter in a manner that was 
binding on Member States. Thatwouldmakeittoo easy 
for those States which had profited the most from the 
crises they had provoked in the Middle East and the 
Congo to shift part of their moral, political and finan­
cial responsibility to the other Member States. To 
accept the opinion of the nine judges would mean setting 
a dangerous precedent whose consequences might be 
felt at any time in the future by any one of the Or­
ganization's Member States. 

34. His delegation, which regarded itself as in noway 
bound by the advisory opinion of the International Court 
of Justice, was equally unimpressed by the millions of 
dollars contributed to the operations concerned by the 
United States, whose representative had recently 
sought to contrast that country's philanthropic be­
haviour with the alleged selfishness of other Member 
States. What moved and impressed his delegation was, 
rather, the poverty of the countries exploited by the 
great imperialist Powers and the sufferings of the 
Congolese people, which had seen its independence 
trampled underfoot a few short days after attaining it 
and had escaped one form of exploitation only to fall 
prey to another. 

35. The United States was attempting to impose the 
Court's advisory opinion in an effort to curtail the 
powers of the Security Council, so that that country 
could more easily flout the provisions of the Charter. 
It was doing its best to reduce the Congo crisis to a 
simple question of financing, so that all Member States 
would be required to repair the damage caused by those 
Powers which were exploiting the wealth of Kasai and 
Katanga, employing the United Nations as an instrument 
for making and breaking governments, and directing in 
their own interests the operations carried out under the 
United Nations flag. If the United StatesGovernment's 
position was accepted, all that would remain wou~d be 
to propose that reimbursement should also be ma:de to 



989th meeting - 29 May 1963 33 

that Government for the $40 million which it had spent 
on the abortive invasion of Cuba and the tens of millions 
of dollars which it was still spending to carry on sabo­
tage and subversion against the Cuban people. The huge 
sums spent by the UnitedStatesGovernmentinits vain 
efforts to destroy the Cuban revolution would, incident­
ally, be ample to cover the cost of the Congo opera­
tions. 

36. In the final analysis, however, the financial aspect 
of the problem was what interested the United States 
least of all. The latter's aim in violating the provisions 
of the Charter and distorting the decisions of the Se­
curity Council was to turn the General Assembly into a 
voting machine-a body in which that country could 
make free use of military threats and economic pres­
sure to achieve its ends, regardless of the damage thus 
caused to the Organization's prestige. 

37. It was that sort of legal terrorism, to which those 
guilty of infamous acts were resorting as a means of 
easing their consciences, which was creating the inde­
finable atmosphere of futility against which the majori­
ty of Member States-the economically under-de­
veloped and militarily weak countries-were vainly 
struggling, while the imperialist Powers went on with 
their endless schemes, whose consequences they would 
later call on those who were being victimized to bear. 

38, In short, his delegation was unwillingtopaydebts 
contracted by others, it refused to be a silent witness to 
repeated violations of the United Nations Charter and to 
abet the plots of the imperialist Powers, and it con­
demned the pseudo-legal schemes whosepurposewas 
to transform the United Nations into an instrument of 
those who were enemies of the independence and sove­
reignty of peoples. 

39. Mr. ONAMA (Uganda), after associating himself 
with the tribute paid to thememoryofMr. Loutfi, said 
he wished to congratulate the officers of the Committee 
on their re-election. He would also like to commend the 
officers and members of the Working Group for pre­
paring a report which, although it did not contain 
unanimous recommendations, presented very clearly 
the positions of the various States and groups of States 
and would therefore be of great assistance in dealing 
with the financial crisis confronting the Organization. 

40. It was clear from the report that contributions for 
peace-keeping operations had been withheld, in most 
instances, for political reasons. That was true in the 
case of the Soviet Union, France, South Africa and 
Portugal, and it was also for political reasons that 
the United States had announced that until the financial 
position of the United Nations improved that country 
could not commit itself to make contributions for 
peace-keeping operations in excess of its normal as­
sessment. 

41. It was common knowledge that, after granting 
political independence to the Congo, Belgium had joined 
with other imperialist Powers in an effort to promote 
disorders in that country which would favour the growth 
of neo-colonialism. Mr. Lumumba, who had requested 
assistance from the United Nations, had become the 
target of the imperialist exploiters, who had first in­
cited the Congolese people against him and then 
murdered him. That crime had caused further trouble 
throughout the Congo and had helped to plunge the 
United Nations into the financial crisis in which it still 
found itself. His delegation was glad to note that the 
situation had improved since the United Nations forces 
had taken firm action to unify the Congo, and it had been 

pleased to learn from the Secretary-General that the 
military phase of the Congo operation was over. 

42. His delegation hoped that now that favourable de­
velopments had occurred in the United Nations opera­
tion in the Congo, the countries which had withheld pay­
ment of their shares of expenditures of which they 
disapproved would now pay their contributions in order 
to enable the United Nations to discharge its commit­
ments. It hoped that the Committee would find a com­
promise formula that would induce them to do so. Since 
in its view, the United Nations was the only organiza­
tion capable of ensuring the maintenance of interna­
tional peace and security, it accepted the principle of 
collective responsibility for peace-keeping operations, 
as long as that principle carried with it the idea that 
greater responsibility was borne by the permanent 
members of the Security Council, whose disagree­
ments, incidentally, were partly to blame for the 
present crisis, and the principle that the situation of 
the Member States responsible for acts that had led to 
a peace-keeping operation should be given appropriate 
consideration (A/5407 and Corr. 1, para. 16 @), and 
(Q). 

43. While acceopting the principle of collective finan­
cial responsibility, the Uganda Government, whichhad 
incurred expenditure amounting to approximately 
$1 million in recent months owing to the influx of 
refugees into the country would not be in a position to 
contribute to peace-keeping operations over and above 
its regular assessment. He recalled that Uganda had 
recently contributed $28,000 towards voluntary assist­
ance to the Congo and had agreed to buy $10,000 worth 
of United Nations bonds. His delegation would support 
the proposal that expenditures for peace-keeping 
operations should be covered in part by voluntary con­
tributions, and the Secretary-General's recommenda­
tion that the deadline for the purchase of United 
Nations' bonds should be extended to 31 December 1963. 

44. Mr. TREMBLAY (Canada) congratulated the 
Chairman and the officers of the Committee on their 
re-election. He associated himself with the tribute paid 
to the memory of Mr. Loutfi, Under-Secretary for 
Special Political Affairs, whose devotion to the ideals 
of the United Nations would be an example to all. 

45. The fourth special session oftheGeneralAssem­
bly had, in the words of the Secretary-General, been 
called to consider what was one of the most serious 
problems which the United Nations hadhadtoface: the 
ability of the Organization to fulfil one of its primary 
obligations under the Charter-the maintenance of in­
ternational peace and security-was imperilled, 

46. The United Nations had been somewhat slow in 
facing up to that issue. It had confined itself to taking 
inadequate measures and palliatives which had served 
to delay but not to avert the crisis. Some progress had, 
however, been made in the past two years following the 
advisory opinion of the International Court of Justice 
which the General Assembly had accepted at its 
seventeenth session, most Member States had recog­
nized that the costs of peace-keeping operations were 
a collective responsibility. As a result, the unsatis­
factory situation with regard to arrears of contribu­
tions was now beginning to improve. 

47. Canada noted with regret that the Working Group 
had been unable to find a solution capable of reconciling 
the various points of view. Nevertheless, the Working 
Group had done useful work and the constructive atti­
tude of most of its members and the tireless efforts of 



34 General Assembly- Fourth Special Session- Fifth Committee 

the Secretariat and of the Group's officers, in particu­
lar those of Mr. Adebo, its Chairman, would greatly 
facilitate the work of the Fifth Committee. 

48. Canada had submitted various proposals to the 
Working Group (A/5407 and Corr.1,para.9) containing 
elements of an equitable long-termsolutionofthepro­
blem. In the first place, in order to ensure that the 
expenses incurred by the United Nations in respect of 
duly approved peace-keeping operations became the 
collective responsibility of Member States, agree­
ments must be reached in advance on what procedures 
were to be followed in apportioning those expenses 
among Member States. To ensure that the latter had as 
much information as possible on the financialconse­
quences of any contemplated operations, it was desira­
ble that estimates of the costs should be provided as 
early as possible by the Secretary-General in accord­
ance with an agreeed procedure. The financial impli­
cations of any operation which involved expenses in 
excess of those covered by resolution 1862 (XVII) con­
cerning unforeseen and extraordinary expenses, should 
be brought before the General Assembly for appropri­
ate action. If the Assembly was not in session and the 
decisions were taken by the Security Council, the As­
sembly should be convened as soon as possible either 
in special session or in emergency special session 
depending on the circumstances. In considering those 
implications, the General Assembly should examine the 
estimates of expenditures prepared by the Secretary­
General and should give him the necessary authority. 
It might also be desirable to adopt appropriate account­
ing procedures for peace-keeping operations, and, in 
particular, to consider opening special accounts to 
form part of the regular budget. 

49. The Canadian delegation thought that for peace­
keeping operations involving the use of military forces 
and equipment it would be desirable to devise a method 
of financing which would be based on three clearly de­
fined principles. First, a predetermined sum to be 
apportioned in accordance with the scale of assess­
ments for the regular budget would be devoted each 
year to meeting the cost of military operations; its 
amount might be set at $10 million for each duly 
approved operation. Secondly, expenses in excess of 
that sum but below $75 million would be apportioned 
under a special scale of assessments to be drawn up by 
the Committee on Contributions under Article 17 of the 
Charter. Lastly, commitments relating to expenses for 
a military operation exceeding $75 million or to a num­
ber of operations costing more than $125 million would 
require specific authorization by the General Assembly 
in each instance and the adoption of special financial 
arrangements. 

50. The scale for assessing Member States would be 
based on their capacity to pay, as expressed in terms 
of their national income. Capacity to pay was not only 
the most equitable criterion but, unlike others sug­
gested in the past, it was also capable of being ex­
pressed in quantitative terms. The proposals to intro­
duce subjective criteria, especially thoseofapolitical 
nature, would be bound to lead to protracted debate. The 
Canadian delegation thought thattheGeneralAssembly 
should avoid making any proposals for thefinancingof 
peace-keeping operations which would involve factors 
other than those which normally entered into the calcu­
lation of the regular scale of assessments. 

51. Thus, many developing countries would have their 
assessments reduced in proportion to their capacity to 
pay, whereas other countries would be assessed at 

rates higher than or the same as their customary rates 
under the regular scale. That method would, of course, 
apply only to assessments in respect of operations 
undertaken under Article 17 of the Charter. 

52. He wished to refer in particular to the general 
principles listed in paragraph 10 of the Working 
Group's report which, in the view of the majority of 
the members of the Group, might provide a basis for 
the financing ofpeace-keepingoperations. The Canadi­
an delegation considered them to be of vital importance. 
Moreover, they expressed the essence of the detailed 
proposals put forward by Canada in document 
A/ AC.113/2, which were summarized in the Working 
Group's report. 

53. Unfortunately, however, the Working Group had 
been unable to propose a specific cost-sharing formula. 
It seemed to the Canadian delegation, therefore, that the 
Committee might usefully consider two fundamental 
points. Firstly, without seeking any longer to reconcile 
the differences of opinion as to general principles, the 
Committee should embody the points on which a 
Measure of agreement had already been reached in a 
declaratory resolution which would serve as a starting 
point for future decisions by the General Assembly. 
Secondly, it should be recognized that the most immedi­
ate task was to provide the funds necessary to maintain 
UNEF and ONUC in being during the six mo)lths im­
mediately ahead. The Canadian delegation thoughtthat 
agreement on those two points was possible on the basis 
of the general principles to which it had already re­
ferred. Clearly, the task would not be easy, since a 
considerable divergence of views persisted among 
Members both with regard to the technical aspects of 
any financing method and to the political andconstitu­
tional legitimacy ofUNEF and ONUC. Despite its desire 
to see the General Assembly adopt long-term arrange­
ments, the Canadian delegation had come to the conclu­
sion that the time had not yet arrived for the strict 
application of the principle of capacity to pay, as that 
would compel certain Members to acceptfinancialob­
ligations in excess of their assessment as calculated 
in accordance with the scale used for the regular 
budget. It was hopeful, however, that an ad hoc formula 
could be found for the problem of financing operations 
during the second half of 1963. It was clear from the 
Secretary-General's report (A/C.5/974) that unless 
urgent action was taken to improve the financialposi­
tion of the United Nations, there would be insufficient 
funds to meet normal requirements in the coming 
months. Any financing formula must therefore include 
provisions which would facilitate the prompt payment of 
assessments, improve the general cash position and 
develop sound financial and budgetary procedures. 

54. A study of the nine ad hoc financing methods which 
the Assembly had previously employed (during the 
period 1957-1962) was of interest in that connexion. 
Though based on the principle of collective financial 
responsibility, those methods had differed greatly in 
regard to the criteria applied and the reductions 
allowed. In particular, there had been a specific re­
lationship in each case between the size of the peace­
keeping budget and the amount of relief afforded to the 
developing countries: the rate of assessment of certain 
developing countries had declined in ratio to the in­
crease in the cost of the operations. Thus, any ad hoc 
method was largely dependent upon the circumstances 
existing at the time of its adoption and, in particular, 
upon the magnitude of the costs of the operation in 
question. That last point had been recognized in part 



989th meeting - 29 May 1963 35 

by a large number of Member States, which wished 
to apply the regular budget scale to an initial amount 
of the costs of large-scale operations, and to take into 
account the developing countries' limited capacity to 
pay. 

55. Another important element was the considerable 
disparity existing not only in Members' ability to pay, 
but also in the priorities which Governments set in 
determining the allocation of national resources. Any 
cost-sharing arrangement mustrecognizethatitwould 
not be practical to dividethemembershipofthe United 
~ations into two or three groups. Some Members, for 
mstance, had a relatively small capacity to pay but, be­
cause of the importance they attached to the role of the 
United Nations; might wish to harmonize their financial 
with their moral support. On the other hand, some 
Members with a relatively large capacity to pay had 
shown little eagerness to give the United Nations the 
financial means it required to become an effective 
instrument in the service of peace. 

56. To sum up, the Committee must resolve two 
problems. On the one hand the urgent financial needs 

Litho in U.N. 

of th~ United Nations must be met; on the other hand, 
certam fundamental principles must be formulated to 
govern the equitable apportionment of the costs of 
future operations. If Members were unable to resolve 
their differences regarding the adoption of sound and 
equitable financing methods, the Organization stood in 
danger of losing all prestige and effectiveness. The 
Canadian delegation hoped that the many countries for 
which the United Nations represented a living and 
necessary reality of modern international life would 
consider sympathetically the financial problems which 
threatened to paralyse the Organization. It hoped that 
they would also recognize the dangers inherent in cer­
tain solutions which though couched in legalistic terms 
were defeatist in character. The United Nations must 
at all costs be made a viable and effective Organization, 
capable of contributing to the maintenance of interna­
tional peace and security and of overcoming the politi­
cal, economic and other difficulties which beset the 
world. 

The meeting rose at 1 p.m. 

77505-0ctober 1963-2,150 




